O©CoONOOUTAWN P

REGULAR MEETING January 11, 2011 1

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING of the City Council of the City of Orange City, Florida,
held on Tuesday, January 11, 2011 at 7:00 p.m. in Council Chambers, 201 N. Holly Avenue, Orange
City.

CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mayor Strickland and roll call was taken.

ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Mayor Harley Strickland; Vice Mayor O. William (Bill) Crippen; Council Members Jeff
Allebach, Tom Abraham, Anthony J. Pupello, Tom Laputka; City Attorney William Reischmann; City
Manager Jamie Croteau; City Clerk Deborah Renner

ABSENT: Council Member Gary A. Blair

Ms Croteau noted that Council Member Blair requested a discussion of the alleys in Orange City. This

is on the agenda as Item 8A, however, due to Council Member Blair’s absence, Ms. Croteau requested
that it be continued to the next meeting.

INVOCATION

The Invocation was given by Barry Greening, Assistant Pastor, Volusia County Baptist Church,
followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.

1. ABSENCES: None at this time.

2. PRESENTATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS: None at this time.

3. CITIZENS COMMENTS:

Gina Holmes, Sustainable Water Committee, came forward and thanked the Council for their actions
regarding the Seth French house. Ms. Holmes said membership on the Sustainable Water Committee
has fallen and the Committee wishes to advertise a meeting to be held in February at the Manatee
Festival. In addition, the Committee is requesting $100 to provide refreshments at that meeting. Ms.
Holmes requested that the alternative water fee for people using 3,000 gallons or less of water a month
be removed.

Ms. Croteau advised that the alternative water fee is not applied on customers using under 6,000 gallons
of water. She said the Utility recently sold surplus meters and could fund the $100 the Water
Committee is requesting.

It was the consensus of the City Council to donate $100 to the Sustainable Water
Committee for refreshments at their next meeting.

4, CONSENT AGENDA:

a) Award Bid for Tree Trimming Services



O©Ooo~NoOh~,wWw N B

REGULAR MEETING January 11, 2011 2

b) Award Bid for Sidewalks
C) December 14, 2010 Regular Meeting Minutes

Council Member Allebach moved to approve the Consent Agenda, seconded by Vice
Mayor Crippen and passed by a unanimous 6/0 roll call vote of the Council.

S. ORDINANCES - FIRST READING:

A. ORDINANCE NO. 447: An ordinance of the City of Orange City, Florida,
annexing the Senez property into the corporate limits of the City of Orange
City, Florida; said property being generally located on the west side of North
Volusia Avenue, approximately 600 feet south of West Minnesota Avenue,
containing approximately 9.35 acres; in accordance with the voluntary
annexation provisions of Florida Statute 171.044; redefining the boundaries
of the City of Orange City by amending the appropriate sections of the code
of ordinances; containing a repealer provision, a severability clause and
providing for an effective date.

Council Member Allebach read the title of Ordinance No. 447 into the record.

Council Member Laputka moved to adopt Ordinance No. 447 on first
reading, seconded by Vice Mayor Crippen.

Jim Kerr, City Planner came forward and advised the Senez property at 2235 N Volusia Avenue is
approximately 9.5 acres located 600 ft south of West Minnesota Ave. He said the property is contiguous
to the City limits and meets the criteria for State statutes for voluntary annexation. Staff recommends
Council adopt Ordinance No. 447 annexing this property into the City limits.

Motion passed by a 6/0 roll call vote of the Council.

B. ORDINANCE NO. 449: An ordinance of the City of Orange City, Florida,
extending a temporary moratorium for an additional ninety (90) days on the
issuance of any business tax license, permit, conditional use approval, site
plan approval, and any other official action of the City of Orange City having
the effect of permitting or allowing construction and/or operations of certain
businesses within the City of Orange City, related to game rooms, arcades,
internet cafes, sweepstakes redemption centers, establishments using slot
machines or slot machine like equipment and similar indoor entertainment
and amusement activities as more specifically described in this ordinance,
excluding approvals and permits for the continuance of an existing business;
the temporary moratorium shall apply to all real property located within the
corporate limits of the City of Orange City; providing for conflicting
provisions; providing for severability, conflicts and an effective date.

Council Member Allebach read the title of Ordinance No. 449 into the record.

Council Member Laputka moved to adopt Ordinance No. 449 on first
reading, seconded by Vice Mayor Crippen.



O©COooO~NOoO Uk, WNPEF

47

REGULAR MEETING January 11, 2011 3

Council Member Laputka acknowledged that other cities are taking similar legislative action and
questioned if there were any challenges. Mr. Reischmann responded in the negative. He said local
governments are still struggling to determine the most efficient way to regulate these businesses.
Extending the moratorium is allowable for a defined period of time and with acceptable rationale. In
addition staff will have more time to find the best way to protect the citizens and the City from illegal
gambling establishments opening.

Motion passed by a 6/0 roll call vote of the Council.
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

A. ORDINANCE NO. 444: An ordinance of the City of Orange City, Volusia County,
Florida; amending Orange City Code Appendix A, Zoning Ordinance, as adopted by
Ordinance No. 157, amending Section 8.6.1 Schedule of Zoning Districts Permitted and
Conditional Uses; containing a repealer provision, severability clause, and providing for
an effective date.

Council Member Allebach read the title of Ordinance No. 444 into the record.

Council Member Laputka moved to adopt Ordinance No. 444 on
second and final reading, seconded by Vice Mayor Crippen.

Wendy Hickey, Planning & Zoning Analyst came forward and said there have been no changes since the
first reading of this ordinance.

Mayor Strickland opened the public hearing by asking if anyone wanted to speak for or against the
proposed ordinance, no one appeared. The mayor closed the public hearing.

Motion passed by a 4/2 roll call vote of the Council, with Council
Members Allebach and Pupello voting “no.”

B. ORDINANCE NO. 445: An ordinance of the City of Orange City, Florida,
annexing the Pantry property into the Corporate Limits of the City of Orange
City, Florida; said property being generally located on the west side of North
Volusia Avenue, approximately 0.0 feet north of West New York Avenue,
containing approximately 1.55 acres; in accordance with the voluntary
annexation provisions of Florida Statute 171-044; redefining the boundaries of
the City of Orange City by amending the appropriate sections of the Code of
Ordinances; containing a repealer provision, a severability clause, and
providing for an effective date.

Council Member Allebach read the title of Ordinance No. 445 into the record.

Council Member Laputka moved to adopt Ordinance No. 445 on second
and final reading, seconded by Vice Mayor Crippen.

Mr. Kerr said there have been no changes since first reading.



O©CoOoO~NOoO OIS~ WN -

REGULAR MEETING January 11, 2011 4

Mayor Strickland opened the public hearing by asking if anyone wanted to speak for or against the
proposed ordinance, no one appeared. The mayor closed the public hearing.

Motion passed by a 6/0 roll call vote of the Council.

C. ORDINANCE NO. 446: An ordinance of the City Council of the City of
Orange City, Florida, amending Chapter 10.5 Leisure Services, Article Il Use
Restrictions, Section 10.5-19 Rules and Regulations, of the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Orange City, by revising sub-sections (1), and (11),
and adding sub-sections (19) and (20); containing a repealer provision, a
severability clause and providing for an effective date

Council Member Allebach read the title of Ordinance No. 446 into the record.

Council Member Laputka moved to adopt Ordinance No. 446 on second
and final reading, seconded by Vice Mayor Crippen

Christine Davis, Finance Director came forward and said there have been no changes since first reading.

Mayor Strickland opened the public hearing by asking if anyone wanted to speak for or against the
proposed ordinance, no one appeared. The mayor closed the public hearing.

Motion passed by a 6/0 roll call vote of the Council.
7. RESOLUTIONS:

A. RESOLUTION NO. 628-10: A resolution of the City Council of the City of
Orange City, Florida, acknowledging and approving a third 12-month
extension to the preliminary subdivision plat for the Lansdowne Oaks
Subdivision, with the intent to divide a 5.0 acre parcel and a 10.0 acre parcel
into 35 proposed residential lots, said parcels located on East Lansdowne
Avenue, Orange City, Florida; repealing all resolutions or parts of resolutions
in conflict herewith; and providing for an effective date.

Council Member Allebach read the title of Resolution No. 628-10 into the record.

Council Member Laputka moved to approve Resolution No. 628-10,
seconded by Vice Mayor Crippen.

Mr. Kerr noted this presentation applies to agenda items 7A- Preliminary Subdivision Plat and 7B- Site
Plan for Lansdowne Oaks. He said the applicant is requesting his third 12-month extension to these
development orders. Referring to a PowerPoint presentation (a copy of which is attached and becomes a
permanent part of these minutes) he noted the location of the subdivision. He said it consists of 5 and 10
acre lots on East Lansdowne Avenue. The developer anticipates subdividing the property into 35 Yz-acre
residential lots with underground utilities, a mail kiosk, paved roads, sidewalks, streetlights and treed
landscape. Mr. Kerr said staff is recommending Council approve a 12-month extension of the
preliminary subdivision plat and a 12-month extension to the site plan subject to 8 conditions. He
discussed the conditions noting that conditions 7 and 8 were recently modified.



O©COooO~NOoO Uk, WNPEF

REGULAR MEETING January 11, 2011 5

In response to a question from Council Member Laputka, Ms. Stettner said that staff negotiated
conditions 7 and 8 with the developer. Ms. Croteau explained that several citizens expressed concerns
about the proposed subdivision, staff incorporated those concerns into the development order.

Henry Durica, 1310 E. Lansdowne Ave. came forward and thanked Ms. Stettner for her help with
initiating the changes.

Motion passed by a 6/0 roll call vote of the Council.

B. RESOLUTION NO. 629-10: A resolution of the City Council of the City of
Orange City, Florida, acknowledging and approving a third 12-month
extension to the site plan for the Lansdowne Oaks subdivision, said site plan
containing the specifications to divide a 5.0 acre parcel and a 10.0 acre parcel
into 35 proposed residential lots, said parcels located on East Lansdowne
Avenue, Orange City, Florida; repealing all resolutions or parts of resolutions
in conflict herewith; and providing for an effective date.

As a point of order Council Member Allebach questioned whether the motion must mention the two
conditions added to the development order. Mr. Reischmann advised that is not required as the
conditions are a part of the development order.

Council Member Allebach read the title of Resolution No. 629-10 into the record.

Council Member Laputka moved to approve Resolution No. 629-10,
seconded by Vice Mayor Crippen.

Vice Mayor Crippen noted that the last time this development order was extended he was aware of the
concerns citizens had with regard to the project. He thanked Ms. Stettner for her efforts in getting those
concerns addressed.

Motion passed by a 6/0 roll call vote of the Council.

C. RESOLUTION NO. 630-10: A resolution of the City Council of the City of
Orange City, adopting a revised fee schedule for development review to
establish a fee for special event permits; providing for conflicts; providing for
severability; and providing an effective date.

Council Member Allebach read the title of Resolution No. 630-10 into the record.

Council Member Laputka moved to approve Resolution No. 630-10,
seconded by Vice Mayor Crippen.

In response to a question from Council Member Laputka, Ms. Stettner explained that Exhibit A is the
fee schedule for all development review fees. The special events permit fee was added and is depicted
by an underline.

Motion passed by a 6/0 roll call vote of the Council.

D. RESOLUTION 631-10: A resolution of the City Council of the City of



O©CoONOOTLE, WN -

REGULAR MEETING January 11, 2011 6

Orange City, Florida, recognizing and confirming legislation in progress
regarding the extension of a moratorium on the establishment and/or operation
of internet cafes in Orange City; repealing all resolutions or parts of
resolutions in conflict herewith and providing for severability and an effective
date.

Council Member Allebach read the title of Resolution No. 631-10 into the record.

Council Member Laputka moved to approve Resolution No. 631-10,
seconded by Vice Mayor Crippen.

Mr. Reischmann advised that this resolution works in conjunction with Ordinance No. 449 and is
required to bridge the gap between the original 180 day moratorium and the extension in process. He
said it is a court recognized legal process for legislations in process.

Motion passed by a 6/0 roll call vote of the Council.
8. DISCUSSION AND ACTION:
A Discussion of Alleys in Orange City (Continued to next meeting)
B. Discussion Regarding Bus Benches

Mr. Kerr came forward to provide a report on the location of bus shelters and benches in the City. He
displayed a PowerPoint presentation (a copy of which is attached and becomes a permanent part of these
minutes) and noted that Voltran operates the public transit system in Volusia County and establishes bus
routes and stops. Cities within the County are responsible for providing bus shelters and benches based
on a “warranted” criterion. He detailed the criteria and stated an inventory of the bus stops in the City's
planning area showed a total of 60 bus stops, 14 bus benches and 7 bus shelters. Currently, two benches
and a shelter are warranted at Ohio Avenue and U.S. 17-92. Several cities contract with vendors to
install benches with advertising at no cost, while others fund their own bench and shelter installations;
however, at the present time Orange City does neither. Several advertising companies contracted with
the County to install benches with advertising throughout the City and those benches are in violation of
the Land Development Code. He displayed photos of the benches and explained that off-premise signs
and signs in the right-of-ways are prohibited and that a permit is required. Mr. Kerr discussed the
various options available to correct the problem. He concluded by stating staff is recommending criteria
be established to install bus benches without signs when warranted, and that the benches and shelter that
are warranted be installed at the locations discussed. In addition, staff is recommending the removal of
the 14 benches that are in violation of the Code.

Council Member Laputka observed many of the benches are placed in the right-of-way and are too
dangerous for public use. He asked if staff’s recommendation will help solve that problem. Mr. Kerr
responded in the affirmative. He said the benches would be removed and the new benches installed
must meet the City’s requirements.

Mayor Strickland noted that advertising on the bus benches is a way to generate additional revenue for
the City. Mr. Reischmann pointed out that under the existing code, advertising on bus benches is
considered an off-site sign and is not allowable. He cautioned that amending the Code to allow off-site
signage may open the door for “unintended consequences.”



O©oOoO~NOoO Ol WN -

REGULAR MEETING January 11, 2011 7

Council Member Abraham asked what the trends in larger cities are. Ms. Stettner responded there are a
number of viewpoints on signage for transit stations. She discussed the various types of signs that could
be installed and stated her opinion the City is not “transit ready” enough to accept those types of
solutions. She discussed the factors staff will consider when determining criteria for the type and
placement of bus benches.

Council Member Allebach said he is not concerned with the advertising on the benches. The companies
that install the benches maintain the area by picking up the trash. He said he wants a quick resolution
because removing the benches would create discontentment among the people who ride the buses and
who use the benches. He said if the benches are removed, the City must have an alternative in the place.
He noted that if the City were to provide benches with advertising signs, the City could not control what
is said on the signs due to the freedom of speech laws. Council Member Allebach said that he would
like to see garbage cans at each bus stop.

Mayor Strickland suggested the city consider benches that are smaller and difficult for the homeless
population to sleep on. He said he would like to see benches that compliment the look of the City as
well as providing for the people who use the buses, and that the benches not be installed in the rights-of-
ways.

Council Member Abraham felt that Option 3 is the best option for the City. Vice Mayor Crippen said he
agrees with Council Member Allebach’s comments. He suggested the City could contract with a vendor
and put conditions on the type of advertising the vendor would put on the benches. He stated that would
be an ideal public/private venture that would accomplish what the City is trying to accomplish.

Council Member Pupello expressed his opinion that Option is 4 is the only viable option that will allow
the City to control the look of the City and prevent placement of the benches in the right-of-ways. He
suggested that the maintenance costs are worth it. He agreed with the Mayor’s comments about people
sleeping on the benches and said other cities have a center arm rest to prevent that. He agreed that
garbage cans at each bus stop are required. Council Member Pupello questioned who will pay for the
removal of the benches. Ms. Croteau advised the companies that installed the benches must remove
them as they were installed without a permit. She stated this is an opportunity for Council to define
what the City is going to look like. The advertising benches are against the Code, and are classified as
“visual pollution.”

Council Member Pupello suggested that it is important for staff to continue working with Votran and to
monitor the “warranted” criteria for the placement of bus benches and shelters as that will provide a
better understanding of the transit needs in the City. He said he agrees with removing the “illegal
billboards” on the bus benches because they are unsafe and contribute to blight. Council Member
Pupello suggested that the City could use the bus shelters as an opportunity to advertise upcoming City
events.

In response to a question from Mayor Strickland, Ms. Croteau said that staff would install the benches.
Staff will bring forward a recommendation based on the criteria for Option 4. She reminded Council the
City is currently working on a community redevelopment area along U.S. 17-92 including a
streetscaping package that could include the bus benches, bus shelters and trash receptacles. The
proposed benches are similar to what is already in the historic areas of the City and the parks. Ms.
Croteau said $100,000 for community improvement is in the budget. Originally the money was to be
used for the Seth French House, but it could be used for this project.



O©CoOoO~NOoO OIS~ WN -

REGULAR MEETING January 11, 2011 8

Council Member Allebach stated that it is important to note that more than two benches are required to
fix the problem.

9. NEW BUSINESS:
Vice Mayor Crippen said that he would like to see a discussion on garbage recycling education.
Council Member Laputka said he would like to see a discussion on “pocket parks.”
10. REPORTS:
A. City Manager

Ms. Croteau reminded Council the City offices will be closed on January 17" in observance of the
Martin Luther King holiday. Ms. Croteau said the City has made its payment to Team Volusia, the
contract is for 3 years, but can be cancelled at any time. Ms. Croteau said she met with Emerald Waste
Services (EWS) about recycling and that EWS will work with the City on a recycling education
program.

Ms. Croteau asked Police Chief Frank Ross to come forward. She said Chief Ross’ contract is up
tomorrow. She presented him with a plaque, thanking him for coming to the City at a time when the
Police Department was in turmoil. She said he has done an outstanding job in “calming the waters” and
in bringing professionalism to the Police Department. A farewell celebration is planned for tomorrow at
3 p.m. in Council Chambers. Council Member Laputka read a proclamation into the record publicly
acknowledging and thanking Frank Ross for sharing his time, expertise and knowledge with staff and
citizens of the City.

Chief Ross gave his parting words. He said this was a “wonderful opportunity” to meet new associates
and that he, too, has learned through his interaction with the police officers. He expressed his personal
appreciation to Council for the opportunity to serve the Orange City community and for creating an
environment for the police officers. Chief Ross thanked Ms. Croteau and Commander Thomas for their
support. In conclusion, Chief Ross stated, “any successes that we have experienced are attributed to the
men and women of the Police Department.”

Ms. Croteau announced that Commander Pete Thomas will take over as the new Chief of Police. She
said Commander Thomas has been with the City since 1991. He recently completed the Southern
Institute Administrative Officer’s Training Program. She said Commander Thomas will be sworn in as
Police Chief at the next City Council meeting.

B. Mayor/City Council

Council Member Allebach said the executive board of Volusia League of Cities met today. The next
league dinner will be on January 27" in South Daytona. The new executive director for Team Volusia
will present the educational training program and will talk about developing a strategic plan.

Council Member Laputka announced that he will be leaving early tomorrow to go to Tallahassee for a
Senate Budget Hearing to comment on some of the water mandates handed down by Tallahassee. He
said he will be accompanied by Council Member Abraham and Michael Wright from the Sustainable
Water Committee.



O©oOoO~NOoO Ol WN -

REGULAR MEETING January 11, 2011 9

Mayor Strickland discussed continuing issues regarding consolidation of fire services. He said it will be
on the agenda for the Summit meeting. TABOR is another major issue that will be on the agenda as
well. He explained TABOR legislation will put a cap on expenditures and revenue for local
governments. Mayor Strickland said this legislation is coming from the Senate and urged everyone to
contact their Senator to express your opposition to this legislation.

C. City Clerk

Ms. Renner reminded Council the City will have a booth at the Manatee Festival. She said she will pass
around a schedule for any Council Member that would like to help staff the booth. Ms. Renner advised
that the windows for the Clerk’s office will be replaced shortly. She said a new computer for the office
is on its way. Ms. Renner said she will be meeting with the imaging software representative next week.
Council Member Allebach stated the imaging software will provide greater transparency because the
Clerk’s office will have the capability to image and make available all city documents quickly.

D. City Attorney
No further report.
11.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES (See Consent Agenda)
12. COUNCIL COMMENTS:

Council Member Abraham said that he will be making a DVD of the proceeding in Tallahassee. He said
he will make a copy for Council. Council Member Abraham said he went to the City of Apopka and
spoke at their first commission meeting of the year.

Vice Mayor Crippen wished everyone a good time and success in Tallahassee. Vice Mayor Crippen
said visitors who visited his business have commented that Orange City is the nicest little town in
Florida. He said he hopes the community redevelopment area is up and running soon so the City can get
its reputation going for being a good place to live.

Mayor Strickland reminded Council about the small group meetings he held with the local business
owners. He said he promised to meet with them in a larger group setting and that he has scheduled a
meeting for January 20™. He asked Council Members for their help in encouraging them to attend. It
will be an informational meeting to discuss the community redevelopment project, development issues
about U.S. 17-92 and several other issues that will affect the business owners. He distributed copies of
the letter inviting participants (a copy of which is attached and becomes a permanent part of these
minutes). He invited Council Members to attend but asked that there be no discussion on city business
to avoid violations of the Sunshine laws. Mr. Reischmann advised that the City Clerk notice the
meeting.

Council Member Allebach discussed the various activities planned for the Manatee Festival. He said
Channel 13 will have a blimp at the Manatee Festival; a helicopter involved with manatee rescues and
the Central Florida Zoo will be present as well. Council Member Allebach said that he read an article in
the newspaper about someone filing a lawsuit against police officers for the use of excess force because
the police officers shot at him while he was trying to run them down with his car. Addressing the Police
Officers present, Council Member Allebach stated, “I’d rather go to a criminal’s funeral then yours,



O©oOoO~NOoO Ol WN -

REGULAR MEETING January 11, 2011 10

shoot away.” Referencing comments about fire service consolidation, Council Member Allebach stated,
“Consolidation is not going to happen on my watch.”

Council Member Pupello thanked the citizens who were present he said he would like to see more come
to the meeting. He asked everyone present to invite their neighbor to the next meeting. Council
Member Pupello said he sees the City becoming more professional. He stated, “I believe that we are
heading in the right direction.”

Council Member Laputka said he agrees with Council Member Pupello’s comments. He noted the
attendance at the goal setting workshops was the highest turnout ever and said he would like to replicate
that this year. Council Member Laputka said he picked up a community newspaper new to the area. He
said he observed 19 events in the tri-city area for January and that Orange City has just one. He said he
would like to see more City sponsored events. Council Member Laputka announced that on Saturday
there will be a free concert with the “Kings Brass” at the Volusia County Baptist Church. He invited
everyone to come.

Mayor Strickland echoed the comments with regard to attendance. He said when he started three years,
he wanted to tell some jokes and have some fun. Mayor Strickland he would like to leave everyone with
a little puzzle to figure out. He stated, “My puzzle for you is to see what you can find out about “hacker
space” and I’ll explain what it is at the next Council meeting.”

13. ADJOURNMENT:

There being no further business, Mayor Strickland adjourned the meeting at 8:42 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted: Approved On:

February 08, 2011

Gloria Thomas, CMC
Deputy City Clerk



